ASDJ & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

301, 3rd Floor, Park View Plaza, Plot No. 9, LSC-3, Sector-6, Dwarka, New Delhi - 110075
Tel: 011-47008956, E-mail: asdjassociates@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of Quintillion Media Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Quintillion Media Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial
statements’).

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the profit and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Other Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. i




In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of management for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section [34(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reportin g process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are




based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s However. future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure-A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.




f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

2. The company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses, and

3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investors education and
protection fund by the company.

4. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material mis-statement.

5. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

For ASDJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No-033477N

fodel fulg

Abhishek Sinha
(Partner)

M. No. 504550
UDIN: 22504550AKECKG5904

Date: 28 May 2022
Place: Noida




Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the company
on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31%' March, 2022, under the heading “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”, we report that:

(1

(1

i)

(a)(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. »

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals: no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and thus, the
same is not required to be dealt with in the books of account:

(¢ ) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and
based on the examination, we report that, in respect of immovable properties of land and
building there have been no assets taken on lease and thus disclosure as fixed assets in the
financial statements is not required.

Description | Gross Held in | Whether promoter, | Period Reason  for
of property | carrying | name of director or | held indicate not being
value their  relative or | range, held in name
employee where appropriate | of company*
| NA NA NA NA NA NA

(d) There is no Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets in the company and thus there is no revaluation in Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and, so, the clause is
not applicable to the Company;

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder, and so, the disclosure in its financial statements is not required:

(a) The Company does not have any physical inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.
5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets; the facility is secured by a fixed deposit and filing of the quarterly returns or
statements by the company with such banks or financial institutions are not required. Thus,
the clause is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us, during the year the company has made
investments in convertible debentures of a subsidiary company of Rs 11,53,14,391/-, and
other than that it had not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly:

(a) During the year the company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of
loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity thus this clause of the order
is not applicable,

(b) Investments in Convertible Debenture made in a subsidiary Company, are not prejudicial
to the company’s interest. Other than that there are no guarantees provided and security given
during the year by the Company;




(IV)

(V)

(V1)

(VII)

VIII)

1X)

(¢) The Company has not provided any loans and advances in the nature of loans, thus this
clause of the order is not applicable.:

(d) The Company has not provided any loans and advances, thus no amount is overdue. for
more than ninety days;

(¢) The Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, thus this
clause of the order is not applicable.;

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters,
related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 thus this
clause of the order is not applicable.;

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any investments
to which the provision of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year which are
covered under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or under the provisions of
Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under,
therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2020
are not applicable to the company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the company. Thus, paragraph 3(vi) of
the order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities and
other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the
company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 3 I, 2022 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales- tax. service tax, goods and service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of account and have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), thus this clause is not applicable to the Company;

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks, financial institutions and
government and is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(b) The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained:;

(c) There were no funds raised on short term basis which have been utilised for long term

purposes;




(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

(¢) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

(X)  (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) and has not taken any term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) of the order is not applicable. ‘
(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and so. the
requirements of compliance of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
required. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable.

(XI)  (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year,

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government:

(¢c) There are no whistleblower complaints received during the year by the company;

(XII)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore the. Provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company,

(XI) In our opinion, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements (Refer Note No 30) as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(XIV) (a) The company does have an internal audit system and the internal audit is conducted by an
independent internal auditors;
(b) The internal audit reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit was
considered by us, the statutory auditors, and no material adverse comments were found to be
reported,

(XV)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them during the year
under audit. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the order are not applicable to the
company.

(XVI) (a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act,1934. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the order are
not applicable to the company.

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

(¢) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group,

(XVI) The company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year, and has cash losses of Rs18.68 Lacs during the current financial year (previous

year ended 31 March 21 Rs. 159.78 Lacs);

(XVIHI) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.




(XIX) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;

(XX) (a) The Company does not meet eligibility criterion thus transfer to CSR fund under Section 135
is not required. Accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the Company.

(b) There are no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Companies Act; Accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the Company

(XXI) This is the standalone financial statement and the auditors of subsidiary companies have not
given any qualification or adverse remarks in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order
(CARO) reports of the companies to be included in the consolidated financial statements.

For ASDJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.- 033477N

%M&b\@m&/

Abhishek Sinha

(Partner)

M. No. 504550

UDIN: 22504550AKECK.G5904

Date: 28 May 2022
Place: Noida




Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Quintillion Media Private Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub —
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Quintillion Media Private
Limited (“the Company™) as at March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls
g p

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting,

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (iij




provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For ASDJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.- 033477N

Lichol kg
Abhishek Sinha
(Partner)
M. No. 504550
UDIN: 22504550AKECKG5904

Date: 28 May 2022
Place: Noida




Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

All simount in %, unless stated othenvise)

. As at As at As at
Pasticulars INateE 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 01 April, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4A 3,99,518 569,873 2,48,75,370

4B - - 67,319
85,20,59,044 73,03,76,935 1,93,03,76,935
] 6 65,22,188 60,00,000 6,67,21,201
Income tax assets (net) 7 92,08,615 HE,83,651 1,03,18,576
‘Total non-current assets 86,81,89,365 74,58,30,479 2,03,43,59,421
Current assets
Financial assets
“I'rade receivables 8 - 43,12,302 4,21,69,182
Cash and cash cquivalents 9 2,45,928 8,09,150 12,21,431
Loans 10 - - 10,09,00,000
Other tinancial assets 6A 14,41,889 1,47,38,465 32,50,237
Other current assets 1 2533,576 23.93,229 42994771
Total current assets 42,21,393 2,22;53,346 19,05,35,621
Total assets 87,24,10,758 76,80,83,825 2,22,48,95,042
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Hquity share capital 12 85,00,00,000 85,00,00,000 85,00,00,000
Other equity 13 1,33,71,669 (49,93,03,695) 3,72,71,955
Total equity 86,33,71,669 35,06,96,305 88,72,71,955
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings 4A 1,27,125 37,66,18,237 65,05,48,556
Provisions 15A 1,62,196 4,214,399 1,43.67,298
Total non-current liabilities 2,89,321 37,70,42,636 66,49,15,854
Current liabilities
Financial L
Borrowings 4B 82,53,213 3,46,2:1,882 61,18,76,299
Trade payables 16 3,68,028 48,935,760
Other financi, bilitics 17 44,867 522,135
Other current liabilities 18 78,405 2,90,054
Provisions 158 5,255 12,033 4,445,081
Total current liabilities 87,49,768 4,03,44,864 67,27,07,233
Total liabilities 90,39,089 41,73,87,520 1,33,76,23,087
Total Equity and Liabilities 87,24,10,758 76,80,83,825 2,22,48,95,042
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
“The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
As per our report of even date
For ASD] & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors
Chartered Accountants Quingillion Media Limited

Firm Regjstration No.: 033477N,

Ragl 1 Ritu Kapur
Abhishek Sinha Dir Director
Partner

DIN: 00015280 DIN 00015423
Membership No. 504550

UDIN: 22504550 AKECKG5904) T “ . - / .
/

Vivek Agarwal Vidhi Kharbanda
Chicf Financial Officer Company Sceretary
M. No.: 15285

Noida
+ 28 May 2022




Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amount in ¥, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

asticulsy Do 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Income

Revenue from operations 19 - 4,55,62,701
Other mcome 20 3,05,65,884 2,12,06,621
‘Total income 3,05,65,884 6,67,69,322

Expenses

Employce benefit expenses

Finance cost 22
Depreciation and amortization expense 23
Other expenses 24

Total expenses

Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Diminution in value of investment in subsidiary 25

Profit /(Loss) before tax

Tax expenses

(a) Current tax

(b) Deferred tax

Profit /(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, net
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(1) Ttems that will be rechssified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income /(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Earnings/ (loss) per equity share 26
Basic (%)

Diluted (%)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For ASD] & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 033477N
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Chief Financial Officer

12,31,266

2,66,87,305

466,378 14424124
1,70,355 34,90,923
61,84,416 4,53,65,668
80,52,415 8,99,68,019
2,25,13,469 (2,31,98,697)
64,72,242 1,20,00,00,000
1,60,41,227 (1,22,31,98,697)
1,60,41,227 (1,22,31,98,697)
2,54,088 1833578
2,54,988 18,33,578
1,62,96,215 (1,22,13,65,119)
0.19 1
0.19 -1
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Director
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Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amount in ¥, unless stated otherwise

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 1,60,41,227 (1,22,31,98,697)

Adj for non cash and Trem shown separately:

Employee stock oprion compensation - (1,52,72,890)

Depreciation 1,70,355 34,90,923

Diminution in value of non current investment 64,72,242 1,20,00,00,000

Exces provision written back (2,74,85,140) -

Profit on sale of non-current investments (14,610)

Loss on sale of non-current investments 24,99,750

Loss on sale of fixed assets -

Interest income (28,50,666)

Orher adjustment for non cash items- sale of aperation -

Interest expense on borrowings 4,66,378 1,44,24,124
Operating profit before working capital changes (47,00,464) 18,92,22,433
Movement in other financial assets (5,22,188) =
Movement in loans - 10,09,00,000
Movement in other assers (1,40,347) 4,06,01,542
Movement in trade receivable 43,12,502 3,78,56,680

(13,993) (1,25,42,339)
(45,27,732) 2,23,43,109)
Movement in Financi (3,39,550) (1,09,08,737)
Movement in other liabilitics (2,11,649) (70,71,432)
Cash generated from operations (61,43,421) 31,57,15,038
Tncome tax paid /(refund) (3,24.96:4) 14,3:4,925
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) (64,68,385) 31,71,49,963
B.  Cash flows from investing activities
Sale of tangible assers 2,08,19,469
Redemption proceeds from fixed deposit = 6,03,00,000
Purchase of investments (11,53,14,391) =
Sale of investments 2,75,00,000 -
Interest reccived 8,07,302 1,11,01,609
Net cash flows from investing activities (B) (8,70,07,089) 9,24,21,078
C.  Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of Short term | ings (ner) (2,63,71,669) (57,44,16,339)
Proceeds from Issue of Compulsory convertible debentures 11,54,00,000 25,00,00,000
Proceeds of Optionally convertible debentures 38,10,00,000 22,00,00,000
Repayment of Optionally convertible redeemable debentures (37,65,00,000) (27,35,00,000)
Repayment of Long term borrowings - (32,80,546)
Interest paid 0,16,079) (2,87,86,437)
Net cash flows from financing activities ©) 9,29,12,252 (40,99,83,322)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (5,63,222) (4,12,281)
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,09,150 12,21 431
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,45,928 8,09,150
(Refer Note No.9)
Comprises:
(@) Cash in hand 4,062 91,501
() Balances with banks
() In current accounts 2,41,866 17,649
() In depesit accounts - =
2,45,928 8,09,150

The accompanying notes are an integeal part of these financial statements.
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Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Allamount in T, unless stated otherwise)

A Equity share capital

Particulars

Opening balance as at

Changes in equity share capital

Balance as at

Changes in equity share capital during

Balance as at

1 April 2020 during the year 31 March 2021 the year 31 March 2022
Fquity share capital 85,00,00,000 - 85,00,00,000 E 85,00,00,000
B Other equity
Particulars Reserve and surplus Equity component of convertible debentures
Securities  |Capital reserve Retained Share based Compulsorily Optionally Other .
premium carnings payment convertible convertible Eompielieigive Total
account reserve meome

|Balance as at 1 April 2020 15,00,00,000 - (1,87,78,97,847)|  1,52,72,890 1,74,98,96.912 - 3,72,71,955
Profit/ (loss) for the year - - (1,22,31,98,697) - = S 1833578 13,05,119)
Current year transfer - 23,00,85,186 - z 24,99,85,312 21,99,91,862 - 70,00,62,359
Adjusted during the year - - £ (1,52,72,890) S - - (1,52,72,890)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 15,00,00,000 | 23,00,85,186 (3,10,10,96,545) - 1,99,98,82,224 21,99,91,862 18,33,578 (19,93,03,695)
Profit for the year - - 1,00,41,227 - - 2,541,988 1,62,96,215
Current year transfer - - 11,53,93,216 38,09,85,932 - 49,63,79,148
Adjusted during the year - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 15,00,00,000 | 23,00,85,186 |  (3,08,50,55,317) - 2,11,52,75,440 60,09,77,794 20,88,566 1,33,71,669
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For ASDJ & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors

Chartered Accountants Quingillion Media Limited
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Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

1 Reporting entity
The 'Company' was incorporated as Quintillion Media Private Limited on 23 August 2014 under the Companies Act, 2013, The objective of the Company is to
carry on the business of running websites through web, digital or mobile media and which may nelude various information including current affairs, lifestyle,
entertainment cte. The CIN of the Company is U74999DL2014P1LC270795. During the curtent year the name of the Company was changed to Quintillion
Media Limited.

2 Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities which have been measured
at fair value amount. The standalone financial statements of the Company have becn prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards (‘Ind ASY),
mcluding the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company’s standalone financial statements are presented i Indian
Rupees (), which 1s its functional currency.

101

All assets and liabilities have been chssified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal eperating cycle and other criteria as set out it the Di
[T of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and liabilitics.

2.2 Summary of Significant accounting policies

a  Revenue recognition
The primary source of revenue of the Company is from online advertising. Advertisement meome is recogmsed proportionately over the contractual period
commencing the date when the related advertisement gets placed on the Company’s website and when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of
consuderation that will be derived. Revenue from sale and monctisation of content is recogmsed on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of underlying
agreements. Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for tansferring distinct goods or
services 1o a customer as specified in the contract, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates and excluding amounts collected on behalf
of third partics (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally duc upon satisfaction of performance
obligations and the receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional.

Contract balances

Trade receivables represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Revenue xeess of invoicing are considered as
contract assets and disclosed as unbilled revenue. Invoicmg n excess of revenues are considered as contract labilitics and disclosed as uneamed revenues.
When a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability 15 recogmised and disclosed as
advances from customers.

Contract liabilitics are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

in

Interest and Dividend income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is
ncluded under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount has been established.

b Property, plant and equipments
Fixed assets - tangibles
Recognition and initial measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are miet and
dircetly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, Capital expenditure incurred on rented propertics is clssified as
‘Leasehold improvements” under property, plant and equipment
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance ace charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Methad in accordance with the useful life of assets estimated by the management, which is the rate preseribed under
schedule 17 to the Companies Act, 2013, Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease agreement or the useful life whichever s shorter.

De-recognition

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any sygnificant part initially recognised 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS

On trnsition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and cquipment recognized as at 1 Apnl 2017
measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that careying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

¢ Leases

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arcangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the usc of
an identified asset. The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an ideatificd asset and the Company has

1 ially all of the ic L from usc of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Company applics the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-teem leases. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expens ht-line b > term The
cost of the right-of-usc asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date plus any initial dircct costs incurred. The right-of-use asset
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease lability.

on a st

is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,

The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencenient date over the shorter of lease tesm o useful life of right-of use
asset. The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. 1f that rate cannot be reacdily determmned, the
Company uses inceemental borrowing rate.




d Intangible Assets
Intangible ated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebate le
loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset 1o its working condition for the intended
usc.
Subsequent costs are mncluded in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that futuce economic
benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and cost can be measured reliably.
Gains or losses arising from derccognition of intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
The Company’s intangible assets comprises assets with finite useful life which are amortised on a stright-line basis over the period of their expected useful life.
Computer softwares are amortised on straight line method over an estimated hfe of 1-3 years, also taking into consideration the underlying license period.
Website and mobile applications are amortised over 5 years and 3 years respectively. Brand name is being amortised over 5 years.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for Intangible Assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date.

cls a

ss accumulated amortisation/ depletion and impairment

¢ Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset may be impaired. 1f any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. IF such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its cacrying amount, the earrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated
as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impawment loss
previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying
amount,

i

Financials Instruments

Financial asscts and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial a and labilitics
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are dicectly attributable to the acquisition or issue of fnancial asscts and financial liabilitics (other than
financial assets and financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recopmition of
tinancial asset or financial liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

"The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that ace subjeet to an msignificant vsk
of change in value and having original maturitics of thece months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and eash equivalents consist of
balances with banks, which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within the business whose objective 1s to hold these assets m o
ta collect conteactual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Aows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets ace held within a business whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and sclhng
financial assets. The Company has made an irrevocable clection to present subsequent changes in the fair value of cquity investments not held for trading in
other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost o at fair value through other comprey
mcome on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilitics at fair value theough profit or loss
immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss,

e

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilitics are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the asscts of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net of direct issue cost.

NStrument

by

Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, arc assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting peviod. In case of trade receivables, the
Company follows the simplificd approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments - for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The apphication of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk of trade receivables. The Company caleulates the expected credit losses on
trade receivables, using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit lo: expericnce.

Financial guarantee contracts
Fimancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requice a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incu
the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial Buarniee contracts are recopgn
as a liabiliey at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are dicectly attributable to the issuance of the guasantce Subsequently, the liability
higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amort

s because
nitially
wred at the

d

mea:

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it teansfers the inancial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retaing substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retamed interest i the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s car
cumulative gain or loss

ng amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
at had beea recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial habilities are offser and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to res

ze the asset and scule the hability simultancously.




o
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De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
The Company de-recognises financial liabilitics when and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recogmised and the consideration paid and payable is recogmsed in Sta

ement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company may enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the foreign currency exposure risk, Derivativ
value at the date the deriv

cd at fair
sulting,
gain or loss will be recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and cffective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in Statement of Profit and Loss will depend on the natuee of the hedge relationship.

are to be initially recogni
ve contracts are entered and will be subsequently re-measured to therr fair value at the end of each reporting period. 1

Equity Investments

All investments in equity instruments chssified under financial assets are mitially measured at fair value; the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevacably
clect to measure the same cither at FVOCL or FVIPL. ‘The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrament basis. Fair value changes on an
equity instrument is recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOGL
Fair value changes excluding dividends and on an equity instrument measured at FYOCI, are recognised in OCL Amounts recognised in OCI are not
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income” in the
Statement of Profic and Loss.

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs that are diceetly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset
asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the State
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

A qualifying
ent of Profit

Employee benefits:

Post-employment, long term and short term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defned contabution plan 1s a p mployment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified contributions towards Provident Fund, Employce
State Insurance and Pension Scheme. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

"The Company pays gratuity 1o the employees who have completed five years of service with the Company at the time of resignation/ superannuation. The
gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The liability in respeet of gratuity and oth
employment benefits is caleulated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from
employees’ services.

Re-measurements of defined benefit plans in respect of post-cmployment and other long term benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.
Other long-term employee benefits

Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation at year end. ‘The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.
The Company presents the compensated absences as a current hability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

post-

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual bas
Employee share based payment

The employees of the Company and its subsidiary reccive remuneration in the form of share-based payments in consideration of the services rendered. Under
the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the awards piven to employees is recogsed as ‘employee benehit expenses’ with a
corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period. The faic value of the options at the grant date is caleulated by an independent valuer using Black
Scholes Model. At the end of each reporting period, apart from the non-market vesting condition, the expensc is

reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes to the level of options expected to vest, When the options are excreised, the Company issues fresh equity shaces.

Taxes

The mcome tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit and los
relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or directly in cquity, in which case the related income tax
Comprchensive Income or Liquity.

L except to the extent that it
also recognised in Other

Current tax

Current tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authortties, based on tax rates and s that
arc enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet darte.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax lnws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, Deferred tax 1 are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of any unused tax losses. Deferred tax asscts are recognised to the extent tl probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the
deferred tax assct relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is ot a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient tasable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are offset, if a legally enforceable nght
exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilitics and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the same tasable entity and the
same taxation authority.

rrent and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same refate to items that ¢
income or direetly in cquity, in which case, the curcent and deferred tax relating to
cquity, respectively.

e recognised in othee compreh
hiitems are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in




m

Minimum alternate tax (MAT)

Mummum alternate tax (MAT) pard i a year is charged to the Statement of profit and loss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for
MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned company will pay norma g the specified period, ie., the period
for which MATT eredit is allowed to be carried forward. T the year in which the company recognizes M/ 1 asset, it is ereated by way of credic to the
Statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes
down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

come tax du
I credit as

Cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks. The Company considers all Tughly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the
date of investment of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash cquivalents.

Earning per share (EPS)

Basic 'S is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders (aftee deducting preference div and atinby
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding durng the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding, du
ue to existing sharcholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earmings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted averape
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

wends Hle

g the

period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights is

ies

Provisions and Contingent liabil;
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligaton, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Prov
are ured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date, 1F the effect of the time value of money
is matcrial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropnate, the risks specific to the hability.

0118

Foreign Currencies T: ions and Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated i foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency’s closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or teanslation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.
Nonmonetary items measured at faie value in a foreign currency are transhited using the exchange rates at the date when the faie value was measured. The gin
or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at far value 1s treated i line with the recognition of the pain or loss on the change in fair value of
the item,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment for impairment is done at cach Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset may be impaiced. Impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value le:
its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing off the assct. The value in use calculation is based on a DCIF model. The impaivment loss
is recopnised if the recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than its value in use or fair value less cost to sell. Tmy ately recogmsed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

s costs of disposal and

ment losses are immy

Fair value and hi hy

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hicrarchy and assumptions that ace based on market conditions and risks
existing at each reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy

Faur value 15 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

slatl et or liabiliy.

"The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, as
market participants act m their best economic interest.

bsence of a pnncipal market, m the most advantageous market for the

ning that

A faie value measucement of a non-financil asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in ats highest
and best usc, or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Allassets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements arc eategor
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whol

d within the faie value hierarehy, described as

Level 11 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities
Level 2Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the faic value measurement is divectly or indireetly observable
Level 3:Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For asscts and habilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
cach reporting period.

hoand

"The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, payables towards ¢
be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilitics on the basi
asset or lability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above. (Refer Note 29).

ital goods, other Bank Balances and e h cquivalents are considered to

and risks of the

of the nature, chamcteristics

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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3 Reconei n between Previous AP and Ind AS
1nd AS 101, First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standacds, requires
tables represent the reconciliations from peevions GAAR 10 Ind AS.

(a) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at | April 2020

entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive ncome awd cash lows for priac perods. The followin
¥ ity " prios pe ®

Notes  Previous GAAR® Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propeny, plant and equipment 4A 2A8,75,370 24875370
I an 67,519 67,319
5 193,03,76,955 193,03,76,955
Other finsncial sssets 3 7,14.98956 1,498,956
Tiicome tax sasets (iet) 7 10318576 2 1,03,18,576
“Tatal non-currcnt asscty 2,04,31,37,176 - 2,04,31,37,176
Current assets
Financial sssets
“Trade ceceivibles. & 42165,182 42169,182
Cash and cash equivalents 9 122148 12,21,431
Loans. ] 10,09,00,000 10,00,60000
Other financial assets 6 32,5037 32,530,237
Other current assets. n 34217016 IAL1T 06
Total current asscts 18,17,57 866 - 18,17,57,866
“Total nssets 2,22,48,95,0142 A 2,22,18,95,012
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity shate eapital ” 85,00,00000 B3ML00,000
Other cqu 13 (1,71,26,24,957) 1749896912 372,1,95%
Total equity {(86,26,24,957) 1,74,98,96 912 §8,72,71,955
Liabilities
Non-current liabi
uncial liab
Borcowings 14A 240,04,45 468 (1,749896012) 65,05,48,536
Provisions 154 143,67,298 14367,298
Total non-current liahi 2,41,48,12,766 {1,74,28,96,912) 66,19, 15,851

Current lishilities
Financisl liabilities

Borowings 1A 61,18,76.299 61,18,76,200.00

Teade payables 16 27238869

Other finaneial liabilities 17 257,85,528
Othee cuerent labil 18 13,61,486
Provisions 15A 445051 445051 00
Total current liabilitics 67,27,07,233 - 67,27,07,233
Total liabilities 3,08,75,19,9%9 98,96,912) 1,33,76,23 087
Total equity and lisbilitics 2:22,48,95,042 - 2,22 48,95 042
* The Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified ta conform 1 Ind AS preseatation sequirements for the purpose of this note.

) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021
Notes  Previous GAAP® Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propeny, plant and equipment an 560,873 569,873
Intangible sssets 4B B
Financial assets :
Tnvestnents 5 73,03,76,955 73,03,76,955

Other financial sssets [ 60,00,000 60,00,000
Income tax assets (net) 7 £8,83,651 B8 83,651
Total non-curient asscts 74,58,30,479 - 74,58,30,479
Current assets
Financial assets

Teade receivables 8 43,12,502 43,12,502

Cash and cash equivalents 9 819,150 809150

Loans 10 .

Other financial assers 6 14738465 147,38,465
Othee current assets 1 23,93,220 2393239
Total current assets 222,53,346 - 2,22,53, 46
Total assets 76,80,83,825 - T6,80,83 825
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Eq 12 85,00,00,000 £5,00,00 K0
Othier equiy 8] 2.7191,85,438) 22 (49,93,03,695
L (1,86,91,35,438) 2,20, J8,81,7143 35,06,96,303
Lialy
Non-current liabi
Financial abilitics

Barsowings A 2,39,65,00,000 (2,2198,81,743) 3766,18,257

Provisions 154 424399 424399
“Total non-current liab 2,59,60,24,399 (2.21,08,81,743) 37,70,42,650

Current

Financial lisbilities
Borowings 14A 3,46,24,882 346,24 88200
Trade payables 16 48,95,760 43,95,760 00
Other finmscral liabilities 1" 522,135 22,135.00

Other curcent habilities 18 290054 280054 00

Provisions 154 12033 1203300

Total current | 4,034,864 - 4,03, k64

Total I 2,69,72,69,263 (2,21,95,81,743) 41,73,87,520

Total equity and liabilities 76,80 83,825 - 68043825

* The Previoas GAAP figres have been reclassified 10 confomn to Ind AS presentation tequitements for the purpose of this sote.




{e) Reconci of total comprehensive income fur the year ended 3 March 2021
Notes ian GAAPS Adjustments Ind AS
Income
Revernie from operations 19 45562,701
Other income 0 2384628 821993
Totl income 6,59,47,329 ,21,993
Expenses
Employe bencfit expense 21 2,70,17,680 26,55,571 206,13,251
Finance costs 2 14431781 TA431,781
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 3890,923 3490923
Other cxpenscs 24 45365677 45365677
Total expenses 9,03,06,061 2655571 0,20,61,632
Profic /(Loss) hefore exceptional items and tax (243,38,732) (1833,578) @6192310)
Enxceptional items { (1.20,0000,00)
Profit /(Loss) hefore tax (1.2243,58,732) (1833,578) (1226192310
Income tax expense
Current Tax
Defereed tas
‘oral inicome tax expense = = =

Loss for the year (1:22,43,58,732) (18,33,578) (1,22,61.92,310)

Other comprehensive income
o) Irems that will not be ceclassified to profit or kiss:
)R of past empk benefi obligati 1833578 18,33,578
() Income-tax relating to items that will not be reelusified to profit or loss a :
) Ttems that will be reclassified 10 peofit ot loss: .
Other comprehensive income for the year - 18,33,578. 18,393,574

“Total ather comprehensive income for the year (1,22,43,58 72) - 1,22,43,58,732)

* The Indian GAAR figures have been seclassified 1o conform 16 lnd AS presemtion requirements for the pueposc of this note,

(d) Reconciliation of equity between Ind AS and presious Indian GAAP: Asat Asat
Nates 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Liquity an pes previous | (1,86,91,85,446) (86,26,24957)

Ind AS: Adjustment
Financial ssiets and lisbilities st amortised cost

creave/ (doereasc):

Equity Portion of Compulsary Convertible Debenture 1749896912
1,7498,96.912

Deferred tax on the above mentioned sdjustments
Equity as per Ind AS 35,06,96,297 59,72,71,955

(¢) “Mhiere is no impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
Note = | Mean
Undee Previous GAAP, any escalation in opecating lease rentals were straigh
Undec Ind AS, operating lesse centals are ot straight lined over the lesse tenm if the payments 1o the lessor aee staictured 1o increase in e with expecied genced intlation.
undee Tnd AS, cental expense is alvo attnbuted to operal

ment of rental expense

ned over the lease teom,

i lease incentives, like rent free period.

Nate = 2 Measurement of financinl asscts at fair valug

Under Previous GAAP, cucrent investments were siated ai lower of cast and fair vaue,

Unnder Tnd AS, these fnancial asscts have been classitied as Far Vulue Thiough Other Comprehemive lcome (FYTOCE) on the date of tramition 10 Tid AS s fuie value changes
afier the date of tear die statement of peofit and loss.

ion have been recognised i

Note = 3 Measurement of financial assets and liabiltios at umortised cost

Undec Previous GAAP, the finsncial sssets and financial lisbilties were typically earried a the conteactusl amount receivable of pagable.

Under Ind AS, cert ncial assets and financial labilities are initially recogised at G value and subtequently messured st anortsed cost which involves the applieation of effeetive
inteseat method. The effective intecest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the espected hfe of the Fnancial astet ar financial Labiliy ta the
groas careying smount of the fnancial assct or financial Kability. For ceusin faancial wssets id Rnancial libilitics, the fic vahue theeeof st the dute of transition to T AS has been
considered au the new amortised cost of that financial asset and fnancial liability at the date of teansition to Tnd AS. The spplication of efle method results in adjus
caerying smount of Louns, Other Financial Assets, Bowowing and Othe Financial Lisbilitics.

Ve inte s

Note - 4 of benefit

Under the Previous GAAP, these temessurements were forming part of the profit o loss for the yesr.

Under Ind AS, remessutements i acwansl gains and losses, excluding mnounts inchded in the net intecest expense on the net defincd benefit habikiy are recognised in other
comprehensive income wnstead of the statement of profit and hoss.

Note - § Deferred tax
Under Previous GAAP, deferred tax was sccounied a3 per the income statement approsch which requiced creation of deferced tax asset/ i
income and accounting income,

Under Ind AS, defeered tax is sccounted as per the Balance Sheet spprasch which eequices eceation of defecred tax ssset/ hability on temporsry differences between the carrying amount
of an asset/ lishility in the Balance Sheet and its corcespoinding tax bise. The adjustments in equity and net profit, ss discussed sbove, resulied in additional temnporary

which deferred taxes are caleulated.

1y on timiog dilfecences between taxable

Note 6 Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all e of income and expense recognised in a pened shoukd be inchuded in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard res
income and expemse that are not recognised in the statenent of profit snd loss but are shown in the statement of profit and lass a5 ‘ather comprelier
s of defined bene

s or peamits orherwise, ems of
mevane’ includes

plans, The concept of other comprebensive income did not exist under Previous GAAP.




Quintillion Media Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(All amount in 2, unless stited otherwise)

N = Aw A at As at
ote Paiiidilus 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 01 April, 2020
5 N i G H*M 1 at Cost)
A Investment in equity shares - Subsidiarics
() 145216,532 (previous year: 145,216,532) equity shares of 210 cach of Quintillion
Business Media Limited (Formerdy known as Quintillion Business Media Private
Limited) 1,54,37,22,673 1,54,37,22,873
Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of investments (1,20,00,00,000) (1,20,00,00,000) -
34,37,22873 34,37,22673 1,54,37,22,873
(i) 5,577,880} (2019.20: 181,840) equity shares of 2 each of
Indlia Limited { Formerly known as Quintype
Technologies Idia Private Limited) 35,76,81 840 35,76,81,840 181,840
35,76,81,840 35,76,81,840 1,81,840
70,14,04,713 70,14,04,713 1,54,39,04,713
B in prefe shares - Subsidiari
(i) Nil shares (previous year Nil , 2019-20: 30,00,092) of serics sced preferred stock 212730878
at par value of USD 0.00001 each of Quintype, Inc. - - e,
Less: Provision far other than temporary diminution in value of i * - (21,27,30,878)
c in - Subsidi
(i) 59,00,000 (previous year: Nil) optionally convertible zcro coupon dlebentures of € »
100 cach of Quinillion Business Medin Limited ' 11.33,14.391 " =
() Nil (previous year: Nil and (2019-20- 15,00,000)) convertible debentures of USD
- - - 10,21,66,925
1 each of Quintype, Inc.
Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of investments - E (1021,66,925)
11,53,14,391 - B
Nil (previous year: Nil (2019-20--35,75,000)) convertible delsentures of 100 each i
of Quintype Technologies India Limited. { Formerly known as Quintype % & 35,75,00,000
‘Technologies India Private Limited)
z = 35,75,00,000
11,53,14,391 - 35,75,00,000
D Investment in cquity sharcs - Associates
() 5,728 (previous year: 2,882) equity shares of 2 10 cach of YKA Media Private Limited 7,53,39,940 4,00,00000 4,00,00,000
Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of investments (4,00,00,000) (4,00,00,000) (400,00,000)
3,53,19,940 . =
() Nl (previous year: 10) cquity sharcs of 2 10 each of Owlet Films Media Private Limited - 100 100
Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of investments s (100) (100)
3,53,30,040 < z
E I in prefe sharcs - Associ
@ Nil (previous year: 2,75,000) compulsosily converiible preference shares of 2100
cach of Owlet Films Medlia Drivate Linsited . 21500000 150,000
Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of i - (2,75,00,000) (2,75,00,000)
Eol in A
@) Nil (previous year: 200,000) compulsorily convertible debentures of 2 100 each of
YKA Media Private Limited. a0 2:80,00.000
= 2,00,00,000 2,00,10,000
Investments Measured at Fair Yalue Through Profit & Lass (FVTPL)
G Tavestment in equity shares - Others
() 513 (previous year: 513) equity shares of 210 each of Inclov Technalogies Private Limited 6472,242 64,712,242 172,242
(i) Nil (previous year: 250) cquity sharcs of 2 10 each of Four Wheel Group (India) Pyt Lid - 25,00,000 25,00,000
Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of i 64,72,242) » .
5 89,712,242 §0,72,242
#5,20,59,044 73,03,76,055 1,93,03,76,955
— s
Aggregace amount of unquoted investments 2,09,85,31,286 1,99,78,77,055 2,31,27,74,858
A provision for diminution in valuc of i (1,24,64,72,242) (1,26,75,00,100) (38,23,97,903)

*Refer note no 37,38, 39 & 40




Quintillion Media Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(All amount in &, unless stated otherwise)

6 Other financial assts - non current

Secuniy deposit * - =
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits - - 22,2101
Bank deposit with matuity of more than twelve months* 65,22 188 60,00,000 6,65,00,000
65,2218 60),00,000 6,87,21,201
—
6A Other financial asset-current
Interest accrued but nat due on fised deposit 14,411,889 15,36,799 755,319
Interest acerucd but not die on others - 1,32,01,666 2494018
14,41,889 L47,38465 32,50,237
7 lncome tax asscis (net)
Tax deducted at source 91,72,000 BBA47,036 1,02,81,961
TCS receivable 36,615 36,615 36,615
i 92,08,615 8,83,651 1L03,18,576
74 Movement inincome tax asses (net)
Opening batance 88,83,651 103,18576 62,11,114
Add: Taxes paic (net of refund) 324,964 (14,34,925) 41,07 462
Less: Current tax payable for the year - - -
92,08,615 B8,83,651 1,03,18,576
B 'Trade receivable *
(U | idered good, unless otherwise stated)
Receivables from related parties
Considered good - - -
Other Trade receivables
Considered good 2 43,12,502 430,753,182
Considered doubiful % 5 S
- 43,12,502 4,30,75,182
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Considered good (expeeted credit loss) 2 e (9.06,000)
Considered doubytful - - -
- 43,12,502 4,21,09,182
* Sce note 8A for debiors ageing.
9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 4,062 91,501 2,23076
Balances with banks
it curcent accounts 241,866 747,649 998,355
in deposit accounts
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months® 65,22,188 60,00,000 6,65,00,000)
Lesst Amount disclosed as Other non-current assets (refer note 6) (65,22,188) {60,00,000) (6,65 00,00¢
245,928 8,009,150 12,21,431

* Fixed deposits of € 6,522,188 (previous period ¥ 6,000,000) are pleclged as security with the banks against barrowing faciitics taken, These fixed teposits have of 1-3
years with roll over tenm ill expiry of underlying borrowing acrangement.

10 Loans - current
Loans and advances to related partics (see note 28) - 5 10,09,00,000

& - 10,09,00,000

Il Other current asscts

Security deposit . 5 87,779,755
Prepaid expenses 46,003 261,258 54,00,967
Advance ta vendor < 2012 628,272
Balance with statutory suthoritics 22,56,382 199,518 2,79,53,006
Receivable for sale of shares 250 . =
Receivables from other 5 33612 -

Advance to employee 230851 296,829 234,711

25,33,576 23,93,229 4,29,94,771




Quintillion Media Private Limiced
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(All amount in ¥, unless stated otherwise)

12 Equity share capital As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 Murch, 2021 Aw at 01 April, 2020
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amaunt
Authorised
Equity Sharcs of 2 10 each 13,0000,000  1,30,00,00,000 13,00,00,000 1,30,00,00,000 13,00,00,000 1,30,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed & fully puid up
Equity Shawes of 210 each 8,50,00,000 85,00,00,000 8,50,00,000 85,00,00,000 8,50,00,000) £3,00,00,000
“Tatal 8,50,00,000 85,00,00,000 8,50,00,000 85,00,00,000 ,50,00,000 £5,00,00,000
121 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity sharcs
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,50,00,000 85,00,00,000 8,50,00,000 5,00,00,000 8,50,00,000 85,00,00,000
On exercise of warrants - - - = 4 -
Balance at the end of the year 8,50,00,000 85,00,00,000 ,50,00,000 £5,00,00,000 8,50,00,000 K5, 00,00,000
122 Description of the rights, prefe and restrictions attached to equity sharcs

“The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par valuc of 2 10 per share. Hach hoklet of equity sharc is entitled 16 one vote per share. All sharcholders are equally entitled 1 dividends. ‘The
Company will declare and pay dividend i Indian Rupees, if any. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be eniitled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, afier
payment of all iabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Dircctors will be subject 10 the approval of
the sharcholders in the ensuing annual general meeling.

12.3 Details of shares held by each sharcholder holding more than 5% shares:

As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021 Ae at 01 April, 2020
Name of sharcholder . )
Number % of holding Number % of holding Number % of holding
RI Diversified Private Limited (formerly B Investments Private Limited)® - % 8,50,00,000 100% 8,50,00,00 100%
Quint Digital Media Limited (formerly Gaurav Mereantiles Limited)* 8,50,00,000 100% - W - %
8,50,00,000 100% £,50,00,000 100% 100%

* Mr. Raghav Bahl, Ms Riws Kapur, My Mohan Lal Jain, Ms Precti Jain, Ms Shipa and Me Piyush Jain hold | cquity share cach as a nominee sharcholder of Quint Digital Media Li

Details of shares held by each promoters
Name of sharcholder

RB Diversified Private Limited (formerly RB Investments Private Limited)* = % 8,50,00,000 100 8,50,00,000
Quint Digital Media Limited (formeely Gaurav Mercantiles Limited)* 8,50,00000 100% - % —
£,50,00,000 1000 8,50,00,000 100 8,50,00,000

* Me. Raghav Bahl, Ms Ritu Kapur, Me Mohan Lal Jain, Ms Precti Jain, Ms Shipa and Mr Piyush Jain hold | equity share each as a nominee shareholder of Quint Digital Media Limitcd

124 No shares have been issucd for consideration other than cash or as bonus shares in the current year and in the last period immediately preceding the current reporting year.
13 Other Faqui As at As at Asut
= il bl 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Capital reserves
Opening balance 23,00,85,186 - .
() Curment year teansfer 4 25,00,85,186 5
() Written back in current year - . -
Closing bulance 23,00,85,186 23,00,85,186 =
Security premium
Opening balance 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
(+#) Current year teansfer " 5 :
Closing balance 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
Share bared payment rescrve
Opening balance 2 1,52,72,800 84,92,794
(#) Current year transfer - - 67,860,096
(9) Written back in current year - (1,52,72,890) <
Closing balance z - 1,52,72,890
Retained carnings
Opening balance (3,10,10,96,545) (1,87,78,97,847) (1,89,51,24,968)
() Net profit/(Net loss) for the current year 1,60,41,227 (1,22,31,98,69 1722741
Closing balance (3,08,50,55,317) (3,10,10,96,545) (1,87,78,07,847)
Lquity comp of lsaril ible deb
Opening balance 1,99,98,82,224 1,74,9896,912 1,74,98,96,912
Increase due to issuance of debentures during the year 11,53,93216 249985312 -
Closing balance 211,52,75,440 1,99,98,82,224 1,74,98,96,912
Hquify comp of optionall ible deb
Opening balance 21,99,91,862 - -
Increase due to issuance of debentures during the year 38,09,85,932 21,9991 862 -
Closing balance 60,09,77,794 21,99,91,862 -
Other comprehensive income
Openinig balance 1833578 . -
(+) Net profit/(Net loss) for the current year 2,54,988 18,33,578 -
Closing balance 20,88,566 18,33,578 -
Total 1,33,71,669 (49,93,03,695) 3,72,71,955
SR L




Quintillion Media Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(All amount in 2,

nless stated atherwise)

14A Borrowings - non current

- Optionally convertible redeemable debentures (refer note (a) below) - 37,65,00,000 65,00,00,000

- Compulsory convertible debentures (refer note (b) below) 1,08,708 1,10,357 103,088

- Optionally convertible debentures (refer note (¢) below) 18417 7,900 -
127,125 37,66,18,257 65,01,03,088

Term loans (Secured)

- from banks - = 32,80,546

s B 32,80,546
Less: Curcent maturities of long-tenn debt - - -28,35078
—_—
Total 1,27,125 37,66,18,257

Details of long-term borrowings:
Note (a): Terms and d of issue and ion/redemption of Optionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDs) are as under

Optionally convertible redeemable debentures are being issued at face value 2 100 vide board resolution dated 6 November 2017, The conversion of OCRDSs will happen
at a price, determined by an independeat valuer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company. The OCRDS had been issued 1o RB Diversificd Private Limited

(Formerly RB Investments Private Limited), the holding Compuany.

() Number of debentures issved : 6,500,000 Datcofissue: 06 November 2017
(i) Detail of Debentures redeemed:

Particulars Number of debentures Date of payment
‘Optionally convertible redeemable debentures 190,000 16 July 2020

thible rececmable debentures 245,000 31 August 2020
ble redecmable debentures 100,000 23 September 2020
ble redecmable debentures 15,00,000 13 January 2021

¢ redécmable debientires 00,000 19 February 2021

Optionally conv

Optionally conve
Optionally conve
Optionally conve

Optionally convertible redeemable debentures 27,00,000 22 April 2021

Optionally conventible redeemable debentures 10,65,000 20 May 2021
65,00,000

Note (b): Terme and conditions of issue and ion of € ible del (CCD) ure as under:

Compulsorily convertible debentures at o interest rate of 0.001% had been issued at face value T 100 vide board resolution dated 19 March 2019, The tenure of the
plion of the

debenture will be 5 years. The debentures had been issucid (o Me Raghav Bahl, dirccior of the Company. The conversion of the debenure shall happen at it

allotte.

Particulars Number of debentures Date of issue
Compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 25,00,000 19 March 2019
Compulsory convertible debentures (GCDs) 25,00,000 03 Apal 2019
Compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 50,00,000 11 June 2019
Compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 25,00,000 02 July 2019
Compulsory converiible debentures (CC1s) 2500000 17 September 2019
Compulsory convertible debeniures (CCDs) 25,00,000 23 October 2019
Compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 25,00,000 20 May 2020
Compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) 11,54,000 17 Jan 2022

2,11,54,000

Details of utilisation 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 01 April 2020
Gross proceeds received 11,54,00,000 2,00,00,00,000 1,75,00,00,000

Amount utilised 1ill end of the year for general corporate purposes 11,54,00,000 2,00,00,00,000 1,75,00,00,000
Unutilised amount at the end of the year & 5

S

Note (c): Terms and
Optionally converiible debentures at a interest rate of 0.001% had been issued at face value 2 100 vide boand resolution dated 19 March 2019. The tenure of the debienture
will be 5 years, The debrentures had been issued to Mr Raghav Bahl, director of the Company, The conversion of the debeature shall happen at the option of the allotice.

of issuc and fon of Optionally i {OCDs) are as under:

Particulars Number of debentures Date of issue
Optianally convertible debentures 15,00,000 13 Janvary 2021
Optionally converiible debentures 7,00,000 19 February 2021
Optionally convertible debentures 30,20,000 22 April 2021
Optionally convertible debentures 10,65,000 19 May 2021

62,835,000

Details of utilisation 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 01 April 2020
Gross proceeds received 38,10,00,000 22,00,00,000 -
Amount u

dill endl of the year for general comporate purposes 38,10,00,000 22,00,00,000 -
tat the end of the year < =

Unutilised amaon

143 Borrowings - current
Demand loan

-From banks (refer note (i) and (iii) below) 55,00,000 3,15,00,000 56,81,00,000
Working capital facilit
~Firom banks (scfer note (i) belaw) 27,53,213 31,24,882 4,09.41,221
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (sec note 144) = 3 28,35,078
82,53,213 3,46,24,882 G1,18,76,299
e

() Cash credit facility of up to  Nil (March 31, 2021: € 50,000,000 and Apsil 01, 2020: 2 47,500,000) from HDFC Bank careies an interest at Nil (March 31, 2021: Fixed
deposit rate+1% and Apal 01, 2020 5.85%) and is repayable on demand and Cash credit facility of up to T 3,245,280 (March 31, 2021: T 3,245,280 and April 01, 2020: ¥
13,500,000) from Ratsiakar Bank Limited carries an interest at at fixed deposit rate+1% p.a (Macch 31, 2021: 7.75% and April 01, 2020: 7.75%) and is also repayable on
demand. The outstanding balance as on March 31, 2022 under cash credits is T 2,753,213 (March 31, 2021: T 3,124,882 and April 01, 2020: T 40,941,221}, The facilitics
are secured by a charge over fixed deposit of 24,500,000 (March 31, 2021: ¥ 4,500,000 and April 01, 2020: 2 65,000,000) made with the banks.

(i) Working capital demand loan of up to T 7,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 2 50,000,000 and Apnl 01, 2020: ¥ 585,000,000) from Barclays investment and loans limited carrying
an interest at marginal cost of funds based lending rate + spread ratc per annum and is repayable on demand or maturity. The outstanding balance as on 31 March 2022 is
25,500,000 (March 31, 2021: ¥ 31,500,000 and April 01, 2020: T 528,100,000). The facility is secured by hypothecation on all current assets andl movable fixed assets
(including intellectual property rights and ather intangilles) and further by way of personal guarantee from Ms. Ritu Kapue, Dircctor and Mr. Raghav Bahl, Director,

(i

=

Waorking capital demand loan of up to T nil (March 31, 2021 nil and Apil 01, 2020: ¥ 40,000,000) from Barclays Bank PLC carrying an interest rate at NA (March 31,
2021: NA and Apeil 01, 2020: 8.95%-10.15% p.a) and is repayable on demand or maturity. The outstanding balance as on 31 December 2021 is € nil (March 31, 2021 nil
and April 01, 2020; T 40,000,000). The facility is secured by hypothecation on all current assets and movable fixed asscts (including intellcctual property rights and other
intangibles) andl fuether by way of personal guarantee from Ms. Ritu Kapur, Director and Mr. Raghav Bahl, Director.
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16A

Provisions - non eurrent

Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashment

Provisions - current

Proviston for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashment

Trade Payable A
Due to micto and small enterprises

Diue ta others*

* Includes trade payables to related partics (refer note 28)

The details of amaunts outstanding t miero enterprises, small entcrprises and medium enterprises based an

Principle smount due and remaining unpaid

Interest due thereon

Interest paid

Payment made heyond the appointed day during the year

Amountof interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment excluding interest specif

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

Amount of further interest remaining due and pagable in the succeeding years

“See note 1613 for ageing of Trade payables

Other financial liabilitics
Interest accrued but not duc on bocrowing
Employee dues payable

Creditor for Capex

Other current liabi
Statutory dues payable
Advance billing

111,478 2,809,824 7894872

50,718 1,34,575 64,72.426

162,19 4,24,399 1,43,67,208

2,931 5,406 1L,10,360

2,324 6,627 3,34,691

5,255 12,033 4,45,051

AiSa

5 . 9,26,220

3,68028 18,95,760) 2.63,12,649

3,68,028 48,95,760 2,72,38 869

20,347 1,64,063 1,:45,18,721

18,520 358,070 L12,00,416

- - 66,391

44,867 5,22,135 2,57,85,528
S i

T8A05 200054 67,401,361

: = 420,125

78,405 2,90,054 73,61,08G
Rl




Quintillion Mcdia Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(Allamount in ¥, unless stated atherwise)

Year ended Yearended
31 March, 2022

19 Revenue from operations
Advertisement income b
Sale and moenetisation of content -

Subscription reveny

- 4,35,62,701

20 Otherincome

Interest income on fixed deposit 4,714,806 11,729,641
Interest income others 23,75,860 1,91,88,995
Profit an Sale of Shares 14,610 -
Exeess provision written back 2,75,61 403 -
Miscellineous income 1,39,205 837,985
3,05,65,884 gllz 06,621
21 Employee benefit cxpenses
Salaries and wages h 10,43,126 2,29,97,308
Other Defined benefit 75,660 26,42,979
Other emplayee benefits 1,09,080 6,713,666
Staff welfare 3400
12,31,266
22 linance costs
Interest Charges 4,66,378 144.24,124
4,66,378 1,44,24,124

23

fon and amortization expense
ion on tangible assets 1,70,355 34,90,923
Depreciation on intangible assets

1,70,355 M,’Jﬂ.‘)&

24 Other expenses
Content and royalty - 207,349,754
Other production expenses - 1,86,800
Marketing and business promotions 55,964 24,02,973
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 1,043 96,724
et 104,400 33,35,779
Llectricity charges - 540946
Insurance 3,796,194 21,90,843
Travelling and conveyance 5,100 14,99,354
Communication expenscs 3,589 8.82,366
Membership fees - 177,000
License fecs - 804,789
Website maintenance cost - 38,05,000
Legal and professional charges® 21,43,882 26,355,470
Bank charges 70,048 20,06,794
Office and administrative expenses. BO819 11,80,735
Repair and maintenance 5,000 22,83,670
Loss on sale of shares. 24,99,750 -
Loss on sale of fixed assets - 62,424
Rates and taxes 784,512 71,989
Vehicle running and maintenance 37,043 312,188
Brokerge md commission 14,148 -
Printing and stationery - 2,40
Miscellancous expenses 2,024 1,26,669

R X T 57
*Payment to Auditors

Statutory audit fees 3,00,000 3,00,000
GST audit fees 1,25,000 -
Other mauers 20,000 -
4,45, 00 3,00,000
25 Exceptional item
Dimunation in the value of investment 672,242 1,20,00,00,000

STIHD 120000000

26 ngs per share (1LPS)
ngs per shate (EPS) s detenmined based on the net profit atinbutable 1o the sharcholders. Basic camings per share is computed using the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earmings per share is computed using the weightcd average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares
outstanding dunng the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.
As at Awar
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit/(Loss) attributable (o equity shareholders 1,62,96.215 (1.22,13,65,119)
Profit/(Loss) aitributable (o equity sharchokders adjusted after the effect for dilution 1,62,96.215 (1.22,13,65.119)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS §,50,00,000 85,00,00,000
Eiffect of dilution - weightage average number of potential equity shares on account of share warrants - -
Liffect of dilution - weightage average numbee of potential equity shares on account of emplayee stock ; -
8,50,00.000
— S Y

Bamings per equity share
Tasic [T EET]
Diluted 0.19 BE




Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amonnt in . niless stated othernise)

8A Trade receivables ageing schedule

31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
NotDue Less than6 6 months - 1 Ve — More than 3
months year years
Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good - - - % - -
Undisputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - % - > H =
Undisputed trade receivables-credit impaired - - - - = . "
Disputed trade receivables-considered good - - - g E 5 =
Disputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - - = - & e
Dispurted rrade receivables-credit impaired - - = s - -
Total - - - - - - -
31 March 2021
Particulars Oustanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Not Due Lessthan6 6 months- 1 1.3 iate 2-3years More than 3
months year years
Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good 43,12,502 - - - = - 43,12,502
Undisputed trade ceceivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - £ B
Undisputed trade receivables-credit impaired - = 5 e % z 3
Disputed trade receivables-considered good - 5 % . - - .
Disputed trade re bles-which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - = = =
Disputed teade receivables-credit impaired - - - - - . .
Total 43,12,502 - - - B 2 43,12,502
31 March 2020
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Not Due Less than 6 G months - 1 1-2years Bhdyeata More than 3
months year years
Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good 2,99,69,788 1,21,33,962 7,05,756 2,65,676 - B 4,30,75,182
Undispured trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - - - = - - -
Undisputed trade receivables-credit impaired = < = - = = >
Disputed trade reccivables-considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - - = = 43 S =S
Disputed trade receivables-credit impaired - = = = - . 2
Total 2,99,69,788 1,21,33,962 7,05,756 2,65,676 - - 4,30,75,182
16B Trade payables ageing schedule
31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 10 yeati 2.3 years More than 3
year years
(1) Micro and small enterprises - 3,68,028 " - 3,68,028
(1) Others - = - 3 ]
Total - 3,68,028 = - - - 3,68,028
31 March 2021
Particulars Qustanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Not Due Less than | L2y 2.3 years More than 3
year years
(i) Micro and small enterprises - 3 - - - - -
(if) Others 3,953,375 45,02,385 - - = - 48,95,760
Total 3,093,375 45,02,385 B . . 5 48,95,760
31 March 2020
Particulars [¢] ing for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Not Due Teeso (i 1-2 years 2-3 years Moseiind
year years
(1) Micro and small enterprises - 9,26,220 - - - - 9,26,220
(ii) Others 38,37,052 2,16,58,590 8,17,007 - - - 2,63,12,649
Total 38,317,052 2,25,84,810 8,17,007 - - = 2,72,38,869
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

(Allamount in ¥, unless stated otherwise)

4A Property, plant and equipment

Perticulass Co.mputer and l’:l:l.m and Vehicles qm:a Leasehold Fumit_ure and Towat
improve: fittings
Cost or Deemed cost (gross carrying value)
Balance as at 1 April, 2020 2402,646 69,37,175 1,19,39,439 5,83,822 15,78,255 1431033 2,48,75,370
Additions - - - - = » ”
Disposals (19,25810) (65,89,350) (98,59.981) (5.08,627) (5.70.876) (13,70,372) (2.08,25216)
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 4,76,836 347,825 20,79,458 74,995 10,07,379 63,661 40,50,154
Addinions - - - - - - =
Disposals - y . . " :
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 4,76,836 347,825 20,79,458 74,995 10,07,379 63,661
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April, 2020 - - - - & 3 %
Depreciation for the year 4,76,836 347,825 15,09,585 74,995 1007379 63,661 34,80,.281
Reversal /adjustment on disposal of assets - - - - - - .
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 4,76,836 3,47,825 15,09,585 74,995 10,07,379 63,661 34,580,281
Depreciation for the year s E 1,70,355 = = s 1,70,355
Disposals = C = ) e = il
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 4,76,836 3,47,825 16,79,940 74,995 10,07,379 63,661 36,50,636
Carrying amounts ner
As at st April, 2020 24,02,646 69,37,175 1,19,39,439 5,83,822 15,78,255 14,34,033 2,48,75,370
As a1 31 March, 2021 - - 5,069,873 - = - 5,69,873
As at 31 March, 2022 - - 3,99,518 - - 399,518
4B Intangible asscts
Particulars Totingitle
assets
Cost or Deemed cost (gross carrying value)
Balance as at 1 April, 2020 67,319
Additions -
Disposals (56,677)
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 10,642
Additions =
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 10,642
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 Apnl, 2020 -
Depreciation for the year 10,642
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 10,642
Depreciation for the year -
Disposals —
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 10,642
Carrying amounts net
As a Ist April, 2020 67,319

As at 31 March, 2021
As at 31 March, 2022




Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(All amount in , unless stated otherwise)

27

27.1

Employee benefits obligations

Defined contribution plan

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 01 April 2020
Limployer's contribution to provident fund 69,6601 25,34,700) 93,97,946}
limployee state insurance scheme - 645 17,392
Contribution to labour welfare fund - 582 1,584
Total 69,660] 25,35,933 94,16,922|

The Company also has certain defined contributions plans. Contributions are maude to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations.

27.2  Leave obligations
The employees of the company are entitled to compensated abscences. The employees can carey forward a portion of the wniilized acerued compensated absences and utilize it in
future periods or receive cash compensation at retirement or termination of employement for the urilized compensated absences.

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
Preseat value of the obligation at end 53,042 1,41,202) 68,07,117]
Unfunded liability /provision in balance sheet 53,042 1,41,202] 68,07,117
Bifurcation of present value of obligation at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
Cucrent liability 2,324 6,627 334,691
Non-current liability 50,718 1,34,575 64,72,420)
Total 53,042 1,41,202] 68,07,117
Expenscs gnized in other cc h income
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
Changes in demographic assumptions - . (1,602)
Changes in financial assumptions (2,357) (1,843) 338,434
Changes in experience adjustment (95,378) (8,20,148) 2,22,611
Exp gnized in other income (97,735) (8,21,993) 5,50,443
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
[(Current service cost 25,330 141,758 1541424
Interest cost 9,583 1,22,103] 4,23,75Y)

p 2 d in of profit and loss 34,913 2,63,861 19,65,183

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
Preseat value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1,41,202] 68,07,117 55,176,275
Transfer in/(out) obligation x (48,57,251) 3
Current service cost 25,330 141,758 15,:41,424
Interest cost 9,583 1,22,103 4,23,759
Actuarial (gain) /loss (92,735) (8,21,993) 3
Benefits pail (25,338) (12,50,532) (12,93,784)’
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 53,042 1,41,202| 68,07,117

For determination of the liability of the Company the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020

Discount rate 7.30% 6.95%| 6.85%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%| 5.00%|
Retirement age (years) 60 o) 60)
Average age 40.91 340 31.36
Withdrawal rate

Younger age 3.00%) 3.00% 3.00%

Older age 1.00%| 1.00%| 1.00%|

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of TALM (2012 - 1)

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Asar31March2022 | As ar 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020

Year | 2,32+ 6,627

Yeir 2 2,383 6,766

YVear 3 2445 6,901

Year 4 2511 4,896

Yeur 5 2579 7031

Year 6 to 10 12,713 64,428

24,055 98,649




Sensitivity analysis for gratuity
Particulars

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation ar the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 0.5 % 49,910 1,32,496, 64,23,953
Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 56,454 1,50,805| 72,29,598)
b) Impact of the change in withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 10 % 53,192 141,447 08,12,365)
Impact due to decrease of 10% 52,889 140,949 GB,01,728]
) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact duc to inc of 0.5% 56,514 1,50,942 5
Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 49,830 1,32,302] 6:4,15,75Y]

henefit on retirement

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is ur

Risk

s due to mortality and withdrawals ace not material. Hence impact of change is not caleulated above.
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy

not applicable b

a lump sum

kely to occur, and changes in some of the

Actuarial Risk Adverse Salary Growth Experi

ary hikes that are hy

Investment Risk valuation date can impact the li y

er than theassumed salary escalation will result into an increase in Obligation ar

Discount rate Reduction m discount rate in subsequ
Mortality and disability

Withdrawals

Plan’s liabliry.

went valuations can inerease the plan’s liability.
Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the labilities

Gratuity

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Graruity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years
for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last deawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplicd

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Asat01 April2020 |

Present value of the obligation at end
Unfunded liability /provision in balance sheet

1,14,409
1,14,409

2,95,230/
295,230

80,05,232
80,05,232

Bifurcation of present value of obligation at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 Asg at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020

[Cacrent liability 2,931 5400 1,10,360
Non-current liability 1,11,478 2,89,824 78,94,872
Total 1,14,409 2,95,230 80,05,232|
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
Actuarial (gain}/loss
Changes in demographic assumptions 6,55,983]
Changes in financial assumptions (5.851) (4,833) (12,490
Changes in experience adjustment (2,49,137) (18,28,745) (13,33,917)

I gnized in other income (2,54,988) (18,33,578) (6,90,424)
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
Current service cost 53,836 2,53,129) 25,40,750)
Interest cost 20,331 1,56,676 459,510
Expenses recognized in statement of profic and loss 74,167| 4,09,805 30,00,260
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As ac 01 April 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 295,230 80,05,232 59,07,860)
Transfer in/(out) obligation - (56, 12) -
Current service cost 53,836 2,53,129) 2540,750)
Interest cost 20,331 1,56,674] 4,59,510)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (2,54,988) (18,33,578) (6,90,424)
Benefits paid 5 (6,23,417) (2,12,464)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 1,14,409 2,95,230 80,05,232]

Far determination of the liabili
Particulars

of the Company the following actuarial assumptions were used:

As at 31 March 2022

Discount rate

Salary escalation rate

Retirement age (years)

Average age

Withdrawal rate
Younger age

Older age

As at 31 March 2021

As at 01 April 2020

7.30%
5.00%|

60
40.91

3.00%)|
1.00%]

6.95%
5.00%
G0
34.40]

3.00%!
1.00%s

6.85%
5.00%
60|
31.36

3.00%
LO0%a)

Mortality rates melusive of provision for disability -100% of TALM (2012 - 14)




Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 ] As at 31 March 2021 | As at 01 April 2020
Year 1 2,931 5,406 2,178
Year 2 2,935 6,159 2935
Year 3 3,188 B481 3,004
Year 4 3,332 9,064 3,202
Year 5 3,486 10,010 3351
Year 6 to 10 17,023 1,23,421 16,384
32,895 1,62,541 31,114
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Tmpact due to increase of 0.5 % 1,06,662 2,712,596 74,74,580|
Tmpact due to decrease of 0.5 % 1,22,884 3,20,507]
b) Impact of the change in withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 10 % 1,15,015 2,96,701 BUO51,154]
Impact due to decrease of 10% 1,13,7%0 293,690 79,506,830}
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 0.5 % 1,23,036 3,20,589 83,71,520]
Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 1,06,464 2,72,090 76,06,424

Sensiti

Sensitivitics as to cate of inflation, rate of increase of per

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. ln

Risk

ities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material. Hence impact of change is not calewlated above.

ons in payment, rate of inceease of pensions before retirement

i life expectancy are not applicable being
is unlikely to oceur, and changes

alump sum

some of the

Actuarial Risk

Investment Risk
jravestment Tukh
Discount rate

Itis therisk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due o one of the following reasons:

1f Plan is funded then

nismatch & actual investment ceturm on

Reduction i discount rate in subsequent valu

Mortality and disability
Withdrawals

Actual deaths and disabili
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and chan,

is can increase the plan's liabiity.
cases proving lower or higher than assumed i the valuation ¢

ets lower than the discount cate assumed at the last

impact the liabilities.

of withdvawal rates at subseg

uent valuations can mpact
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28.2

Related party disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 the names of the related party where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along with the trnsactions

and year-end balances with the:

as identified and certified by the management are given below:

List of related parties and relationship

Holding company

Quint Digital Media Limited (from 19 January 2022)

RB Diversified Private Limited (1l 18 January 2022

Subsidiary companics

Quintillion Business Media Limited (Formarly known as Quintillion I
Quintype Technologies India Limited (Formerly known as Quintype Technologies India Private Limited )
Associates

YKA Media Pavate Limited

Spunklane Media Private Limited

Entity under significant influence of directors

RB Divessified Pri nited (from 19 January 2022)

Quint Digital Media Limited (6ill 18 January 2022)

Key management personnel

Mr. Raghav Bahl

Ms. Riu Kapur

Related party transactions

ss Media Private Limired )

Related pacties with whom teansactions have taken place for the year ended 31 March 2022;

. Enterprise
Particuliss Holding Subisidiary ” e Key management Total
company contral personnel
Expense incurred by Company on behalf of the others
Quintillion Business Media Limited - 1,41,81,675 - * 141,81,675
Expense incurred by others on behalf of the company
RB Diversificd Private Limited - - 83,250 - 83,250
I of C v ible dek
Raghay Bahl 11,54,00,000 11,54,00,000
Issuance of Optionally convertible debenture
Raghav Bahl s - 40,85,00,000 40,85,00,000
Repayment of Optionally convertible debenture
Raghav Bahl E = . 2,75,00,000
RB Diversified Private Limited - - 37,65,00,000 - 37,65,00,000
Sale of shares
Raghav Bahl - - 2,74,99,750 2,74,99,750
Purchase of Comp ry convertible deb of Quintilli
Business Media Limited
RB Diversified Pyt Lid i LS 11,53,14,391 11,53,14,391
Closing balancses of Related parties as at 31 March 2022
Holdin, Brsenings K« anagement
Particulars & Subsid A under Y AR Total
company ) personnel
Issuance of Ci Isory
Raghay Bahl - 2,11,54,00,000 2,11,54,00,000
I of Optionally convertible del -
Raghav Bahl 5 é: 60,10,00,000 60,10,00,000
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Related parties with whom teansactions have raken place for the year ended 31 March 2021 and closing balances as at 31 March 2021

2 Holding o . Engerpnie Key management .
Particulars Subsidiary Associate  |under common Total
company personnel
control
Expense incurred by Company on behalf of the others
Quintillion Business Media Limited 1,55,39,291 1,55,39,291
Expense incumred by others on behalf of the company
Quintillion Business Media Limited 17,22,351 17,22.351
RB Diversified Private Limited 1,57.835 5
Provision created for di ion in I in subsidi
Quintillion Business Media Limited 1,20,00,00,000 1,20,00,00,000
I of Compulsory i
Raghav Bahl 25,00,00,000 25,00,(0,000
of Opti ly convertible del
Raghav Bahl 22,00,00,000 22,00,00,000
Redemption of debentures 7
RB Diversified Private Limited 27,35,00,000 27,35,00,000
Loan given
(Quintillion Business Media Limited 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Quintype Technologies India Limited 2,23,00,000 2,23,00,000
Loan received back
Quintillion Business Media Private Limired 15,09,00,000 15,09,00,000
Quintype Technologies India Private Limited 2,23,00,000 2,23,00,000
Interest Income
Quintillion Business Media Private Limited 36,95,635 36,95,635
Quintype Technologies India Limited 6,98,605 6,98,605
VKA Media Private Limited 1,44,77,289 1,44,77,289
Sale of operations
Quint Digital Media Limited 27,124,844 21,72,94,844
Transiti dj under the Busi transfer agreement
Quint Digital Media Limited 1,86,15,868 1,86,15,868
Content cost
Spunklane Media Private Limited 1,52,541 1,532,541
'Website maintenance cost
Quintype Technologies India Private Limited 12,85,000 12,85,000
Balances at the end of the year
Investment in equity shares
Quinallion Business Media Private Limived 1,54,37,22,873 2,873
Quintype Technologies India Private Limited 35,76,81,840 35,76,81,840
YKA Media Pavate Limuted 4,00,00,000 400,000,000
Owlet Films Media Private Limited 100 100
Iavestment in
Preference shares - Owlet Films Media Private Limited 2,75,00,000 2,75,00,000
Debentures - YKA Media Private Limited 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Interest receivable
YKA Media Private Limited 1,32,01,666 1,32,01,666
Borrowings
RB Diversified Private Limited 37,05,00,000 37,65,00,000
Compulsory convertible debenture- M. Raghav Bahl 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000
Optionally convertible debenture- Mr. Raghav Bahl 22,00,00,000 22,00,00,000
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Related parties with whom teansactions have take

Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
igni ing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

1 place for the year ended 31 March 2020 and closing balances as at 31 Macrh 2020

Holding

Key management

Particulars Subsidiary Associate Jointventure Total
company personnel

Expeanse incurred by Company on behalf of the others
Quintillion Business Media Private Limited 1,96,76,891 1,96,76,891
Expense incurred by others on behalf of the company
Quintillion Business Media Private Limited 3,69,07,405 3,69,07405
RB Diversified Privare Limited 2,80,000 2,80,000
I of Compulsory ible deb -
Raghay Bahl 1,50,00,00,000 1,50,00,00,000
Loan given
Quintillion Business Media Private Limited 10,09,00,000 10,09,00,000
Payment of Inter corporate deposit
RB Diversified Private Limited 4,10,00,000 4, 10,00,000
Investments made in equity shares -
[Spunklane Media Private Limited 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Investments made in debenturcs -
Quintype Technologies India Private Limited 13,75,00,000 13,75,00,000
Content cost &
Spunklane Media Private Limited 6,61,011 6,61,011
'Website maintenance cost -
Quintype Technologies India Pravate Limited 81,02,000 #1,02,000
Interest Cost %
RB Divessified Private Limited 17,710,225 17,70,225
Sale of Investment 2
Raghav Bahl 57,29,17,452 57,29,17,452
Content sale -
Quintillion Business Media Private Limited 28,20,910 28,20910
Remuneration paid =
Me. Raghav Bahl 90,000 90,000
Ms. Ritu Kapur 42,000,000 +42,00,000
Balances at the end of the year -
Investment in equity shares &
Quintillion Business Media Private Limited 1,54,37,22,873 1,54,37,22,873
Quintype Technologies India Private Limited 35,76,81,840 35,76,81,840
YKA Media Private Limited (refer foomote 2 below) 4,00,00,000 ,00,00,000
Owler Films Media Private Limired (refer foomote 2 below) 100 100
Investment in preference shares -
Quin Inc. (refer foomote 2 below) 21,27,30,878 21,27,30,878
Owlet Films Media Private Limited (refer foomote 2 below) 2,75,00,000
Investment in debentures -
Quintype, Ine, (refer footmote 2 bclow) 10,21,66,925 10,21,66,925
YA Media Private Limited 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Borrowings E
RB Diversified Private Limited 65,00,00,000 65,00,00,000
Compulsory convectible debenture- Mr. Raghav Bahl 1,75,00,00,000 1,75,00,00,000
‘Trade payable -
Spunklane Media Private Limited 1,09,830 1,09,830
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Fait value measurement
Valuation techniques used to determine
The following explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fie values of the financia
celiabibity of the inputs used i determing

pstumeats that are recognised and measured at i value. To provide an
fair value, the Company has classificd its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the aceountisg standaul

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is the amount at which the mstrument could be exchanged in o corrent transaction between willing parties, othee than in a forced or lipidation
The following methods were used to estimate the fair values:-

- Trade reccivables, eash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other current fnancial wssets, current borrowings, trade payables and ol
canying amounts largely duc 1o the short-tem matudties of these instruments

- Borrowings, taken by the Company are as per the Company's credit and liquidity vick assessment and there is no comparable instment having the
being pledged and hence the carrying value of the borrowings ropreseats the hest estimate of fair valic,

ue (NAV).

1 liabilitics appros

d conditions with refa

- The fuir value of investiment in nnitual Tands is measured at quoted price or net asses

There arc no transfoe between Jevels during the year

ea which are mcasurable at amoriised cost for which fair value are disclosed

As ac 31 Mareh 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As ac 01 April 2020
Carrying value Eairvalue Carnying value Faic value rying value airvalue
Financial asscts
At Amortised cost
Trade receivable - - 43,12,502 43,12,502 421,69,182 421,69,182
Cash and cash equivalents 245,928 245,928 809,150 809,150 12,21,431 1221431
Other financial assets 79,064,077 79,64077 20738465 207,8,465 719,71,438 7,19,71438
AUEVIPL
Tnvestments - - 8972242 8972242 89,72,242 89,712,242
inancial liabilities
At Amortised cont
Borowings 43,80,338. 8380338 AL1243,139 41,1243,139 1,26,24,24,855 1,26,24,24,855
Trade payables 368,028 3,68,028 4895760 48,95.760 2,72,38,869 272,38 869
Lease liability . s e : E E
Other financial liabilitics 44,867 44,867 522,135 522,135 2,57,85,528 2,57,85,528
30 ancial risk management
Risk management
e Company's wetlvitics expose i to lipidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has oveeall esponsibilly for the establishinent md oversight of the Company's isk msnagement
Risk Exposuce arising from Measurement 1
Trade reccivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank | Aging analysic Divenification of bank deposits and
Viguidity sk Borrowings, trade payables and other fuancial liabilitics, if_| Cash flow forecasts. Availability of commitied credit lines and
Market nsk — loreym eschange Futiee commercial transactions, recognised financial assets |Cash flow forecasting sensitivity analysis | Forward foreign exchange contracts
Nkt risk — intorest mte | Long-tesm borvowings at vaciable rates [Sensitivity analysis of loans
30.1 Creditrisk
Credit tisk is he risk of financial loss to the Company if  custonter of counterparty (0 a financial assct fails 10 mect its contracinsl obligations. The Gompany's exposure (o credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of cach financial asset. The management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk cte. The
cargying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum eredit sk exposure,
Adefaultona f asset is whe the counterparty fails to make contractual payments as per ageeed teans, This definition of default is ined by considering tie business envi in whicly
entity operates and other macro-cconomic fictors,
The Company monitars its cxposure (o credit risk on an ongoing basis
e Company closely monitors the ¢redit-worthiness of the weceivables though internal systems that are configied to define credit s of customers, thereby, linsting the credit risk 1o pr
smonnts. The Compa ified approach (ifetime expected credit loss model) for the purpose of computation of expected eredit loss for trade receivables.
Category Inputs A
Govemunent ion on deductions made by govermient agencies | Trude receivables outstanding for more cace Tered
Now-goveniment
Tudividuals Individual customer wise trade receivables and information | Trade receivables outstanding for more than two years
Carporates clicnts and agencior Collection against outstanding receivables in past years | Trend of collections made by the Ce
Otlwrs Customer wise trade receivables and information obtained _|Specific allowance is made by assess
Movement in expected credit luss allowance on trade reeeivables
— Asat Asat As at
articulars 3
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 01 April 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 7 906,000 :
Loss allowance mensured at kfetine expected credil loss - (9,06,000) 9,06,000
Balanee at the end of the year - - 9,06,000
302 Liquidity risk

ceting the obligations associated will its financial liabiliies that are settled by delivering cash o another assct. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is 16 it liquidity to et its liabilities when they are due.
Manageinent monitors the Campany's y position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows
The Company takes into accou y apertes
{8) Matuatties of fimancial RsbiBties
The table below provides details regarding the contectual matusities of siguificant financial
Contractual maturitics of financial liabilities: (undiscounted)
an 1 year 110 § years Maore than 5 years Tatal

31 March 2022
Boswwings 8253213 127,128 B3,80,338
Teade payables 3,68,028 3,68,028
Other financial lisbilitics 44,867 44,867
"Total 86,66,108 127,125 - 87,9323

Less than 1 year Tto S years More than § years Total
31 March 2021
Borrowings 3,46,24,882 37,66,18,257 A,1243,139
Tradde payables 46,95,760 48,953,760
Othet financial labilities 522135
“Total 4,00,42,777 37,66,18,257 - 41,66,61,034

Less than 1 year Lto§ years Mure than 5 years Total

31 Masch 2020

Borowings 61,18,76,299 65,05,48,550 1,26,24,24 855
Teade payables 2,72,36,869 2,72,38,869
Other financial liabilities 2,57,85,528 2,57,85.528

‘Total 66,19,00,696 65,05,48,556 - 1,31,54,49,252




303 Market risk
@ Forcign exchange risk
The Company has international transactions and s exposed to forcign exchange risk arising from forcign currency transactions (imports and exports), Forcign exchange risk atises from fure
commercial trnsactions and recognised assets and abilitics denominated in a curcency that is not the Company's functional currency, The Company has not hedged its foreign exchange reccivables
and payables as at 31 March 2021

Particulars As at31st March, 2022 As at 315t March, 2021 As at Ist April, 2020
Amount in foreign | Amount in [ndian Amount in Amount in Indian [Amountin fercign | Amountin Indian
cutrency Rupee forcign currency Rupee curcency Rupee
Teade and other payable
UsD - ] g ¥ 9,795 739327
GBP - - - - 0,081 627,139
Trade and other reccivables
[E5) - - - - 53,425 4032519
* Closing rate as at 31 March 2020 (| USD = 75,48)
* Clasing rate as at 31 March 2020 (1 GBP = 93.87)
y of profit or boss to changes in the exchange eates arises financial i
Pariculars Cureeney xchange rate increase by 1% Exehange rate decrease by 1%
Asat Asat As at A at A at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 01 April 2020 31 December 2021 31 March 2021 01 April 2020
Asscts
Trade receivable usp - - 40,325 - - (40,325))
Liabilitics
Teade payable GBP - - 6271 - - 6271)]
tade payable usD - . 7,393 - - (3,393)]

Intercat rate risk
“Mie exposure of the Company's boreowing to interest ate changes at the at the ead of reporting period are as follows:

“TTie Company's variable rate borrowing is subject to interest rate risk. Below is the overall exposure of the horrowing

[Particulars [ 3tMarch 2022 | 31March 2021 | 01 April 2020

[Borcowings | 83,80,338 | 411243139 | 1,2624 24855
| 83,580,338 | 41,1243,139 | 1,26,24,24,855

Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sewsitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

[Panticulars [ 3 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 01 April 2020 |

Tnterest rates — increare Iy 100 basis pounts 83,80, 411250 1.26,24,249

Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis poits s L1243 (1,262

ce Tease obligation and deferred payment habiities are at fixed rate,

3l

Capital management

Thie Company’s abjectives when managing capital are:

= To cosmee Company's ability to continiie as a going concen,
intai m capital streture and to reduce cost of capital

assesses the capital req in arder 1o maintain an efficient overall financing stovctuce. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustents taitin the light of

Particulars At 3 March | Asat 01 April
As at 31 March 2022 2021 2020

Total borowings 83,80,338 AL1Z33,139 1.26,24,24 855

“Totil equity 86,33,71,669 6 8,72,71,955

Net debt to equity ratio 1% 142%
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32 Share based payments

The Company instituted the Quint Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 (“ESOP Plan 2016”) to grant equity based incentives to eligible employees, ESOP Plan 2016 has been approved by the
Boacd of Directors of the Company at their meetings held. The Company was authoriscd to grant and had granted 3,250,000 number of options to eligible employees. All options under E50Ps
are exercisable for equity shares, No options were granted during the current financial year ended 31 March 2021 and previous financial year encled 31 March 2020,

In terms of the ESOP Plan 2016, the options granted under the Scheme shall vest in not less than one year and not more than five years from the date of grant of options. The option grantee
must exercise all vested options within a period of five years from the date of vesting. Once the options vest as per the Scheme, they would be exercisable by the option geantee at any time and the
shares arising on exercise of such options shall not be subject to any lock-in period.

During the previous year ended 31 March 2021, all the options have lapsed owing to resignation and transfer of all the employees on sale of Company's business to Quint Digital Media Limited

formerly Gaurav Mere

Movement in number of options:

tiles Limited) and thus there is no options outstanding at the year end.

P As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April2020
Opening balance 30,25,000 30,25,000
Granted during the year - - -
Lapscd during the year - -30,25,000
Forfeited during the year . o -
Closing balance - - 30,25,000
Particul ESOP Plan 2016

Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3 Grant 4
Grant date 7 February 2016 4 June 2016 24 August 2017 8 August 2018
Number of options granted 8,50,000 13,00,000 2,25,000] 13,00,000

Vesting period

Options granted shall vest not before 1 year and ny

ot alter maximum vesting, period of -
of grant of such opti

trom the dare

5 years from the date of Vesting

Fixercise period
Exercise price 10 10 10 10.00
iry date 08-Feb-26 05-Jun-26 25-Aug-27 09-Aug-28

Fair value of option on the date of grant* 16.03 17.04 17.04 17.04

Remaining contractual life (weighted months) = = 2

""T'he fair value of the options has been determined using the black Scholes model, as certified by an independent valuer with the following assumptions:

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Weighted average share price (Rs.) - - 10.00

Exercise price (Rs.) - - 10.00

Expected volatility (%s) - - 3%

Expected life of the option (years) = - 10.00
pected dividend yield - - 0.00%

The risk-free interest rate - - 7.90%

Weighted average fair value as on the grant date (Rs.) - - 17.04

33 Operating leases

“The Company had taken various premises on operating lease. The lease agreements had a lock in period of two years, which had alre:

dy ended, and are cancellable ar the option of le

thereatter. Leases have escalation terms after three years and lease periods are extendable by a mutual consent on expiry of the lease. Lease payments during the period recognised in the statement
of profit and loss amount to ¥ 104,400 (previous year: ¥ 3,335,779). There are no long term operating leases as at 31 March 2022,

34 Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Travelling and conveyance “ 3 290,038
Content and coyalty - TH0,402 39,7-,057
Advertising and business promotions 3 1,35,237 43,89,977
Legal and professional fees = 1,86,563 06,40,436
License fees - 3,99,459

- 10,68,202 96,93,967

35  Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Advertisement income - 2,69,47,832 3,08,19,929
Sale and monetisation of content - 11,52,897 37,447,128

- 2,81,00,729 3,45,67,057
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Sale of Digital business

Pursuant to the meeting of Board of Directors of Quintillion Media Private Limited on May 6, 2020, the Company had entered into a Business 'I'ransfer
Agreement ("BTA") with Gaurav Mercantiles Limited (presently known as Quint Digital Media Limited), for acquisition of the Digital Business
operated under name and style of "The Quint', as a going concern . This business includes the English and Hindi websites of The Quint. The
transaction involved Gaurav Mercantiles Ltd -,mqujrjng Quintillion Media’s digital business on a "slump sale basis™. T'he transfer of l)iguul Business was
completed on 1 July 2020 for a net sale consideration of Rs 27,72,94,844 (Rs Twenty Seven Crores seventy two lakhs ninty four thousand eight hundred
and forty four only). The acquisition was a related-party transaction as sharcholders of Gaurav Mercantiles include Mr Raghav Bahl, Ms Ritu Kapur and
Mr Mohan Lal Jain, who are also director on the board of the holding company of Quintillion Media Limited. T'he transaction has been undertaken at
arms length based on a fair valuation report of an independent valuer,

In the current year Quint Digital Media Limited (QDMI) had acquired the shares of Quintillion Media Limited (QML) and QMI. has become a wholly
owned subsidiary of QDML.

The details of recognised amounts of identifiable net assets of the business transfer are as follows:

Net non-current assets transferred(a) Amount
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,59,54,334
Non-current liabilities recognised (1,05,20,063)

Total non-current assets (net) 54,34,271

Net current assets transferred (b) -
Other current assets, Trade receivables, Security deposits, Balances with statut 5,67,02,680
Other current financial liabilities, Trade payables, Fmployee related payables (1,49,27,293)

Total current assets (net) —w

Identifiable net assets transferred (c = a+b) 4,72,09,658

Amount received (d) 27,72,94,844

Excess amount received on net asset transferred to reserve on slump sale 23,00,85,186

Investments made in subsidiaries

One of the Company’s Subsidiaries , Quintillion Business Media Private Limited as at 31 March 2022 has accumulated losses amounting to €
2,968,530,913 (previous year: T 2,835,523,583) which has resulted in a net worth of Rs 120,926,981 (previous year negative 738,852,650) of the aforesaid
Subsidiary . As BloombergQuint platform have shut down its television division because of the inability to get a broadeast licence from the government,
the Company Quintillion Media Pyt Ltd has decided diminution in value of its investment in Quintillion Business Media and to make a provision of Rs
120,00,00,000 (Rs One hundred and twenty crores) in the financial year ended 31 March 2021 which has been charged to it profit and loss account.

Investment in Quintype Inc, one of the subsidiaries of Quintillion Media Limited which had been written off during the previous years, had been
dissolved on 12 August 2020,

The Company has invested in 200,000 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“CCDs™) of Rs 100 each of YKA Media Private Limited (sce note 12).
Fach subscription CCD carries an interest rate of 25% per annum to be compounded annually, calculated from the date of issuance of CCLs.
Although, on a conservative basis, the Company has provided for its entire investment in the equity shares of YKA Media Private Limited. The CCDs
of Rs 2,00,00,000 along with interest of Rs 1,53,39,940 have been converted to 2,846 equity shares during the year ended 31 March 2022,

During the year ended 31st March 2022, long term investments in 100 equity shares in Owlet Films Media Private Limited had been sold for Rs 14710
resulting in a profit of Rs 14,610 & 2,75,000 CCPS in Owlet Films Media Private Limited had been sold for Rs 2,74,85,040 to Mr Raghav Bahl, In
another transaction 250 Lquity Shares of Four Wheel India Private Limited have been sold off for a total consideration of Rs 250 . T'he sale has resulted
in loss of Rs 24,99,750 to the Company.

During the current year, provision for diminution in investment of Rs 64,72,242 in Inclov Technologies Private Limited had been made as the
Company has filed for hiquidation. Also, in the previous years, Quintillion Media Limited had invested ¥ 27,500,100 in Owlet Films Media Private
Limited comprising of 10 equity shares of ¥ 10 each and 275,000 compulsorily convertible preference shares of 100 cach and % 40,000,000 in YKA
Media Private Limited comprising 2,882 equity shares of % 10 each at a premium. Pursuant to negative cash flows and significant crosion of net worth
of Owlet Films Media Private Limited and YKA Media Private Limited, the Company has provided for the entire carrying value of the aforementioned

investments.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and capital commitments

‘The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

The Company does not have any contingent liability and capital commitments as on 31 March 2022, 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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42 Disclosure of material impact of CoVID-19 pandemic on the Company under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of the financial
statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non financial agsets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible
future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial statements,
used various sources of information and economic forecasts. ‘The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that
estimated as at the date of approval of the financial statements,

As the operations of the Company is in digital media, there has been no immediate impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the profitability. ‘I'he Company
does not see a direct impact of the CoVID=19 pandemic outbreak. The Company has taken cost saving measures and has provided the facility to all the
employees of the Company to “Work from Iome’ under the work from home policy as per the guidelines of the Government. The Company is
continuously evaluating the impact of the pandemic on the operations and will undertake necessary disclosures, as may be required.

43 Segment information
The Company has one business unit based on its products and has one reportable segment. The Company operates in a single reportable operating
segment ‘Media Operations”. Hence there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’. Since the
Company’s operations are primarily in India, it has determined single peographical segment.

44 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure
CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereto by the Company during the year is Nil
(Previous year Nil). s

45 Other statutory information
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

(it} The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(iii)The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v)The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a)directly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi)The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics (Ffunding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a)dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pacty (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics,

(vii)I'he Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961)

As per our report of even date

For ASD] & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Quintillion Media Limited

Firm Registration No.: 033477N

dledd L

Abhishek Sinha Bahl Ritu Kapur
Partner Director Director
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Vivek Agarwal Vidhi Kharbanda
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